

A Report to the Montana Legislature

FINANCIAL-COMPLIANCE AUDIT

Department of Administration

For the Two Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020

November 2020

Legislative Audit Division

20-13

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT COMMITTEE

REPRESENTATIVES

Кім Аввотт Kim.Abbott@mtleg.gov Dan Bartel Danbartel2@gmail.com Tom Burnett Burnett.tom@gmail.com Denise Hayman, Vice Chair Denise.Hayman@mtleg.gov EMMA KERR-CARPENTER

Emma.KC@mtleg.gov MATT REGIER Matt.Regier@mtleg.gov

SENATORS

DEE BROWN, CHAIR Dee.Brown@mtleg.gov **JASON ELLSWORTH** Jason.Ellsworth@mtleg.gov JOHN ESP Johnesp2001@yahoo.com PAT FLOWERS Pat.Flowers@mtleg.gov Tom Jacobson Tom.Jacobson@mtleg.gov MARY McNally McNally4MTLeg@gmail.com

Members serve until a MEMBER'S LEGISLATIVE TERM OF OFFICE ENDS OR UNTIL A SUCCESSOR IS APPOINTED. WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST.

\$5-13-202(2), MCA

Fraud Hotline (STATEWIDE) 1-800-222-4446 (IN HELENA) 444-4446 LADHotline@mt.gov. www.montanafraud.gov

FINANCIAL-COMPLIANCE AUDITS

Financial-compliance audits are conducted by the Legislative Audit Division to determine if an agency's financial operations are properly conducted, the financial reports are presented fairly, and the agency has complied with applicable laws and regulations. In performing the audit work, the audit staff uses standards set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the United States Government Accountability Office. Financial-compliance audit staff members hold degrees with an emphasis in accounting and many staff members hold Certified Public Accountant (CPA) certificates.

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards require the auditor to issue certain financial, internal control, and compliance reports in addition to those reports required by Government Auditing Standards. This individual agency audit report is not intended to comply with these reporting requirements and is therefore not intended for distribution to federal grantor agencies. The Legislative Audit Division issues a statewide biennial Single Audit Report which complies with the above reporting requirements. The Single Audit Report for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, was issued March 30, 2020. The Single Audit Report for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, will be issued by March 31, 2022.

AUDIT STAFF

AMIAD AL-SAMHOURY JEANE CARSTENSEN-GARRETT MARY CURRIN JENNIFER ERDAHL KATIE MAJERUS KAREN E. SIMPSON

STEVEN ALTHOFF Donald Erdmann ALEXA O'DELL KELLY ZWANG

Reports can be found in electronic format at: https://leg.mt.gov/lad/audit-reports

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT DIVISION

Angus Maciver, Legislative Auditor Deborah F. Butler, Legal Counsel



Deputy Legislative Auditors: Cindy Jorgenson William Soller

November 2020

The Legislative Audit Committee of the Montana State Legislature:

This is our financial-compliance audit report of the Department of Administration for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2020. This report contains two recommendations to the department, related to internal controls over contract payments and noncompliance with state accounting policy. The report contains unmodified opinions on the financial schedules for fiscal years 2019 and 2020.

The department's written response to the audit recommendations is included in the audit report on page C-1. We thank the Director and his staff for their cooperation and assistance throughout the audit.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Angus Maciver

Angus Maciver Legislative Auditor

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Figures and Tables	
	Appointed and Administrative Officials	iii
	Report Summary	S-1
CHAPTER I	- INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND	1
	Introduction	
	Department Organization and Functions	
	Prior Audit Recommendations	
	Internal Service Funds	
CHAPTER II	I – FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	9
	Local Government Services Accounts Receivable	
	Incorrect Contract Payments	10
INDEPENDE	ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND DEPARTMENT FINANCIAL SCHEDULES	
	Independent Auditor's Report	A-1
	Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity	
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020	A-4
	Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity & Property Held in Trust	
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019	A-5
	Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In	
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020	A-6
	Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In	11
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019	۸ 7
	·	
	Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out	4.0
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020	A-8
	Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out	
	for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019	A-9
	Notes to the Financial Schedules	A-11
REPORT ON	I INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE	
	Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other	Matters
	Based on an Audit of Financial Schedules Performed in Accordance With Government	ţ
	Auditing Standards	B-1
DEPARTMEN	NT RESPONSE	
	Department of Administration	

Montana	Legislative	Δudit	Division
ivioritaria	Legisialive	πuuii	DIVISION

FIGURES AND TABLES

٦	โล	h	وما

ii

Table 1	Contract Payment Errors
I abic I	Cuillact I aviillit Lituis

APPOINTED AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS

Department of Administration

John Lewis, Director

Mike Manion, Deputy Director and Chief Legal Counsel

Cheryl Grey, CPA, Administrator, State Financial Services Division

Russ Katherman, Administrator, Architecture and Engineering Division

Stephen Baiamonte, Administrator, General Services Division

Amy Jenks, Acting Administrator, Health Care and Benefits Division (through December 2018 and also effective May 2020)

Duane Preshinger, Administrator, Health Care and Benefits Division (January 2019 through April 2020)

Tim Bottenfield, Chief Information Officer, State Information Technology Services Division

Melanie Griggs Hall, Commissioner, Banking and Financial Institutions Division

Brett Dahl, Administrator, Risk Management and Tort Defense Division

Angela Wong, Director, Montana State Lottery

Anjenette Schafer, Administrator, State Human Resources Division

Dave McAlpin, Chair, Montana Tax Appeal Board

The Public Employees' Retirement Administration, the Teachers' Retirement System, and the Montana State Fund, which are allocated to the department, are audited separately and financial information is not included in the department's financial schedules.

For additional information concerning the Department of Administration, contact:

Mark Bruno, CPA, Office of Finance and Budget Bureau Chief Department of Administration P.O. Box 200101 Helena, MT 59620-0101

e-mail: MBruno@mt.gov

FINANCIAL-COMPLIANCE AUDIT



November 2020



Department of Administration

FOR THE TWO FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



BACKGROUND

The Department of Administration (department) employs over 500 employees and is responsible for providing key services to other state agencies, including those related to: accounting and financial reporting, warrant writing, and state treasury functions; payroll, employee benefits, and human resources; Capitol complex maintenance and the maintenance, construction, and remodeling of state buildings; information systems development and maintenance; insurance and risk management; and statewide leasing, purchasing, and surplus property administration.

Through the long-range building program, the department expended approximately \$106 million for building construction costs during the audit period.

Additionally, the department administers the state's General Fund. During the audit period, the department transferred-out approximately \$316.7 million from the General Fund to fund other programs or functions of state government during the audit period.

The Department of Administration provides services to state government agencies in a variety of areas. Many of these services are managed through the department's Internal Service Funds. The department generated revenues from Internal Service Fund operations of approximately \$702.9 million during the audit period. Significant expenditure activity of the department included approximately \$374.4 million in benefit and claims expenditures associated with the State of Montana Benefit Plan and \$93.7 million for statutorily required contributions to the state's retirement systems during the audit period. The department received approximately \$25.7 million in CARES Act funds during the audit period. The majority of CARES Act funds were distributed to local governments. This report contains two recommendations to the department, related to internal controls over contract payments and noncompliance with state accounting policy.

AUDITOR'S OPINION (PAGE A-1): UNMODIFIED

We found the department's financial schedules presented fairly the activity of the department in all material respects and issued an unmodified opinion on the regulatory basis of accounting under which the financial schedules are presented. This means a reader can rely on the information presented and the underlying financial records.

For the full context of the department's financial activity, see the financial schedules and notes beginning on page A-4.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

In this report, we issued the following recommendations:

To the department: 2 To the legislature: 0

In this report, we determined the implementation status of recommendations in the prior audit:

Fully Implemented: 5 Partially Implemented: 1 Not Implemented: 1

In addition, we determined the implementation status of recommendations from the 16-13 audit of the department:

Fully Implemented: 3 Partially Implemented: 1 Not Implemented: 0 For the full report or more information, contact the Legislative Audit Division.

leg.mt.gov/lad

Room 160, State Capitol PO Box 201705 Helena, Montana 59620 (406) 444-3122

The mission of the Legislative Audit Division is to increase public trust in state government by reporting timely and accurate information about agency operations, technology, and finances to the Legislature and the citizens of Montana.

To report fraud, waste, or abuse:

Online www.Montanafraud.gov

Email LADHotline@mt.gov

Call (Statewide) (800)-222-4446 or (Helena) (406)-444-4446

Text (704) 430-3930

RECOMMENDATION #1 (page 10):

State Compliance, Internal Control

Local Government Services does not have policies in place to write off uncollectible accounts from local governments.

Department response: Concur

RECOMMENDATION #2 (page 12):

Contract Management, Internal Control

The department should enhance internal controls to ensure contract payments were in compliance with contract requirements.

Department response: Concur

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE

(page B-1):

In this report, we identified the following: Material Weaknesses in Internal Control: 0 Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control: 0 Material Non-Compliance: 0 Other Matters: 0

For the full context of this information, including the distinction between the types of items reported, see the report beginning on page B-1.

Chapter I – Introduction and Background

Introduction

We performed a financial-compliance audit of the Montana Department of Administration (department) for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2020. The objectives of the audit were to:

- 1. Obtain an understanding of the department's control systems to the extent necessary to support our audit of the department's financial schedules and, if appropriate, make recommendations for improvements in management and internal controls of the department.
- 2. Determine if the department's financial schedules present fairly the results of operations for each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, and 2019, and property held in trust for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
- 3. Determine if the department complied with selected state and federal laws and regulations during the audit period.
- 4. Determine the implementation status of prior audit recommendations.

Our audit efforts focused primarily on the department's activity related to: transfers-in and transfers-out; inter-entity loans issued from the General Fund; Long Range Building Program construction expenditures; lottery revenues and expenses; State of Montana Benefit Plan employer, employee, and retiree contribution revenues and benefit expenses; personal services expenditures; State Information Technology Services Division charges for services revenues; and local government retirement contribution support. Our work included gaining an understanding of internal controls and reviewing and testing compliance with state laws.

In accordance with \$17-8-101(6), MCA, we reviewed the fees charged and the fund equity balances of the department's internal service funds. The results of this testing are discussed beginning on page 5.

During fiscal year 2020, the department received approximately \$25.7 million in federal CARES Act funds distributed by the Governor's Office. The Director's Office distributed approximately \$580,000 for reimbursements internal to the department. The State Financial Services Division distributed approximately \$22.6 million to local governments for reimbursements. The remaining funds were expended by the State Information Technology Division for a contract for COVID-19 response tools. For additional information about CARES Act funds received and distributed by the department, see Note 4 to the financial schedules on page A-14.

The report contains two recommendations related to deficiencies in the department's internal controls and compliance with state accounting policy and contract requirements.

Department Organization and Functions

The department provides services to other state agencies in the areas of accounting and financial reporting, payroll and employee benefits, warrant writing, Capitol complex maintenance, state treasury services, insurance and risk management, information systems development, construction and remodeling of state buildings, human resources, purchasing, statewide leasing, and surplus property administration. The department is organized into eight divisions under the Director's Office. Activity related to the Montana State Lottery and Montana Tax Appeal Board are reported in the department's financial information.

The following paragraphs describe the department's primary functions and list the authorized full-time equivalent (FTE) positions for fiscal year 2020.

Office of the Director (30.01 FTE): Responsible for the overall supervision and coordination of department programs and allocated boards and agencies. The office also provides management support (accounting, budgeting, payroll, personnel management, and legal services) to the department and supports the Board of Examiners. The Office of State Continuity and Emergency Management and the Office of Labor Relations are within this program.

State Financial Services Division (60.25 FTE): The State Financial Services Division performs many centralized functions and administers state and federal programs to state agencies, local government entities, and Montana citizens and businesses. The division consists of four bureaus and the State Social Security Administrator. The division prepares and publishes the state's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), maintains a statewide accounting structure with related policies and procedures, processes all state agency payments, and performs bank reconciliations. The division provides system support of the state's enterprise accounting and budgeting systems as well as the Montana Acquisition and Contracting System (eMACS). The division is responsible for administering—including providing technical assistance and training—the State Procurement Act, Montana Single Audit Act, the State's procurement card programs, and the State Social Security Program.

Architecture and Engineering (A&E) Division (17.50 FTE): Assists agencies and citizens of Montana in the design and construction of facilities, repairs and alterations of existing facilities, and planning for governmental and university system needs. The

Long-Range Building Program (LRBP) is administered by A&E. It provides funding for construction, alteration, repair, and maintenance of state-owned buildings and grounds. The LRBP activity is shown in the Corrections, Department & Agencies, DPHHS, and University System programs listed on the Schedules of Expenditures.

Banking and Financial Institutions Division (34.00 FTE): Regulates many of the state's banks and financial institutions to provide Montanans with a system of state chartered financial institutions.

General Services Division (72.35 FTE): Manages facilities' operations, security, grounds, and maintenance for the Capitol Complex (approximately 40 state-owned buildings within a ten-mile radius of Helena); manages building leases for state agencies throughout the state; provides centralized mail services to state agencies located in the Helena area; provides centralized printing design, development, and distribution for state agencies; manages surplus property and recycling; and manages the Federal Surplus Program for government agencies within Montana.

Health Care and Benefits Division (HCBD) (21.87 FTE): Manages the State of Montana Benefit Plan (State Plan) which provides benefits to state of Montana employees, retirees, legislators, survivors, and their covered dependents. The State Plan provides group medical, dental, prescription drug, and vision benefits through self-funded vendor contracts with Third Party Administrators (TPAs). The State Plan offers fully insured life insurance and long-term disability insurance. HCBD is also responsible for administering the State Plan's flexible spending accounts (FSAs), the state of Montana's direct grant and sick leave funds, and the State of Montana Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association Health Reimbursement Arrangement (Montana VEBA HRA). HCBD's Workers' Compensation Management Bureau performs workers' compensation oversight via its workplace safety and return to work programs.

State Information Technology Services Division (SITSD) (189.49 FTE): SITSD establishes and enforces statewide information technology policies and standards and provides disaster recovery capabilities. It implements shared information technology platforms and services such as the state network, state data centers, servers and storage, and enterprise custom and commercial applications.

Risk Management and Tort Defense (17.00 FTE): Provides loss prevention services, insurance coverage, claims adjudication, and tort litigation representation to state agencies, universities, boards, councils, and commissions that serve the citizens of Montana. It evaluates and resolves property/casualty claims including auto, aviation,

property, and tort liability. Settlements, legal fees, and other expenses are paid from the state self-insurance fund.

State Human Resources Division (39.00 FTE): Provides state agencies with human resource management services including training, position classification and pay, and employee relations. Additionally, the division publishes state rules, standards, and policies relating to recruitment and selection, discipline, grievances, performance appraisals, leave, and other HR matters. The division administers the state's human resources modules within the Statewide Accounting, Budgeting, and Human Resources System (SABHRS), supplying payroll and other human resource information systems for state government.

Montana State Lottery (35.00 FTE): The Montana Lottery is operated by a five-member commission that has the power to operate a state lottery and sports wagering, determine the types and forms of lottery games and sports wagering, set the ticket prices, number and size of prizes, conduct lottery drawings, enter into agreements to offer lottery games in conjunction with other lottery states and countries, and prepare financial reports. The Montana Lottery is allocated to the department for administrative purposes. As required by law, the Legislative Audit Division performs biennial audits of lottery security, and annual audits of the Lottery's financial activity.

Montana Tax Appeal Board (5.50 FTE): The board is a court of fact whose work is mandated by Article VIII, Section 7 of the Montana Constitution "to provide independent appeal procedures for taxpayer grievances about appraisals, assessments, equalization, and taxes." The board resolves tax appeals concerning real and personal property, income, corporate, natural resource, centrally assessed property, and new industry taxes. The three-member board and its staff are administratively attached to the department.

Prior Audit Recommendations

The prior audit report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, contained seven recommendations to the department. The department fully implemented five recommendations, partially implemented one recommendation, and did not implement one recommendation. The fully implemented recommendations include items related to property held in trust misstatements, risk management expenditure accruals, GenTax expenditure misclassification, timing of transfers, and violations of temporary worker contract provisions.

In addition, the prior audit report also outlined four recommendations from the audit report for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2016, that were not fully implemented.

We determined the department fully implemented three of these recommendations and partially implemented one recommendation. The fully implemented recommendations include items related to transfer support from other agencies, internal controls over construction work in process, and timing of transfers. More information on all recommendations not fully implemented is included below:

Internal Service Funds

(16-13 Recommendation #2):

We recommended the department adjust rates to ensure fees were commensurate with costs for several of its internal service funds, as required by state law. As discussed in greater detail on page 6, we performed an analysis of the department's internal service fund fees and fund equity balances for fiscal years 2019 and 2020 as part of the current audit. Through this work, we identified multiple funds with either fees not commensurate with costs or for which fund equity balance were not reasonable. We continue to acknowledge the department has procedures in place to monitor the fees charged, working capital, and fund equity balances of its internal service funds. However, the department is still not in compliance with state law for six internal service funds. More information on each internal service fund is summarized on page 6. As such, we continue to consider the recommendation to be partially implemented and we make no further recommendation to the department at this time. We will continue to test the reasonableness of the fees charged and fund equity balances of all of the department's internal services fund in the next audit of the department.

State Employee Benefit Plan Wellness Incentives Discounts (18-13 Recommendation #3):

We recommended the department comply with state accounting policy and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles by not recording revenues and expenses for contribution discounts at Health Care Benefits Division. The department did not concur with our recommendation and did not change their process or procedure during the audit period. As a result, the recommendation was not implemented. Department personnel indicated they do not agree with our interpretation of accounting principles and will not be implementing the recommendation. Although we do not make a further recommendation in this report, the finding is still applicable to the department.

Information Technology Capital Projects

(16-13 Recommendation #5, 18-13 Recommendation #5):

We recommended the department follow the established internal control procedures to ensure money appropriated for long-range information technology capital projects is spent only on approved projects. Through our work we determined the department has implemented processes to obtain a variety of support for long-range information

technology capital projects. However, the support received by the department was not in sufficient detail to determine if the funds were spent on the approved projects and not for other purposes. Based on the information obtained during the audit, we conclude the department partially implemented the recommendation as they continue to improve their processes.

Internal Service Funds

In accordance with §17-8-101(6), MCA, we reviewed the reasonableness of fees charged and fund equity balances in the department's internal service funds. The internal service fund type is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of state government or to other governmental entities on a cost reimbursement basis. The department maintains 12 internal service funds to account for services provided both internally and externally to the department.

In our analysis, we generally considered fees to be reasonable and commensurate with costs if a fund's working capital was positive and did not exceed 60 days of expense activity for the fund. The only exception to this was for the State Information Technology Services Division fund. For this fund, the legislature allows a 30-day working capital, so we used 30 days instead of 60 in our analysis. State accounting policy defines working capital as the amount of cash that would remain if all the current assets were converted, and all the current liabilities paid, at their book value. We considered fund equity to be reasonable if, once adjusted for noncurrent liabilities and non-cash liabilities for pension and Other Post-Employment benefits, the fund equity balance not associated with capitalized assets was positive and also did not exceed the 60-day limit for working capital.

In the two prior audits, we concluded fees to not be commensurate with costs or fund equity to not be reasonable for at least seven internal service funds. In the current audit, we reviewed all of the department's internal service funds and determined fees were not commensurate with costs or fund equity was not reasonable for six funds during the audit period as discussed below.

Statewide Accounting, Budgeting, and Human Resources System:

This fund provides for the financial and budgeting portion of the Statewide Accounting, Budgeting, and Human Resources System. Working capital was 74 days at fiscal year-end 2019 and 118 days at fiscal year-end 2020. Accordingly, fees were not commensurate with costs for either year. Additionally, the portion of fund equity not associated with capital assets exceeded 60 days of working capital for both fiscal years. As such, we do not consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal years 2019 or fiscal year 2020.

State Information Technology Services Division:

This fund manages information technology services for state government. Working capital was negative at the end of fiscal year 2019 and 2020. As a result, we consider fees to not be commensurate with costs for either year. The fund reported negative fund equity in both years, indicating resources in the fund are not adequate to meet its obligations. As such, we do not consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal year 2019 or fiscal year 2020.

Intergovernmental Training:

This fund provides a variety of training products and facilitation services to state agencies. The fund had a positive working capital that did not exceed 60 days at fiscal year-end 2019. Accordingly, we consider fees to be commensurate with costs for fiscal year 2019. Fund equity also did not exceed the allowable 60 days working capital in fiscal year 2019. As such, we consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal year 2019. At fiscal year-end 2020, working capital was 66 days. We consider fees to not be commensurate with costs for fiscal year 2020. Fund equity in fiscal year 2020 exceeded the allowable 60 days working capital, so we do not consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal year 2020.

Print and Mail:

This fund provides graphic design, scanning, printing, mailing, and delivery services to state agencies. Working capital was 69 days at fiscal year-end 2019 and 79 days at fiscal year-end 2020. Accordingly, fees were not commensurate with costs for either year. Fund equity exceeded the allowable 60 days working capital in both fiscal years. As such, we do not consider fund equity to reasonable for fiscal year 2019 or fiscal year 2020.

Management Services:

This fund provides centralized budget preparation, submission, and monitoring procedures for the department. The fund also provides for centralized legal and human resources services for the department. Working capital was 81 days at fiscal year-end 2019, but only 52 days at fiscal year-end 2020. Accordingly, we consider fees to be commensurate with costs for fiscal year 2020, but not for fiscal year 2019. Fund equity exceeded the allowable 60 days working capital in fiscal year 2019, but not fiscal year 2020. As such, we consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal year 2020, but not for fiscal year 2019.

Warrant Writing:

This fund provides the warrant writer program to most state agencies for check writing and automatic deposit capabilities. Working capital was 89 days at fiscal year-end

2019 and 81 days at fiscal year-end 2020. Accordingly, fees were not commensurate with costs for either year. Additionally, the portion of fund equity not associated with capital assets exceeded 60 days of working capital for both fiscal years. As such, we do not consider fund equity to be reasonable for fiscal years 2019 or fiscal year 2020.

Summary:

Based on responses from the department, staff continues to take steps to monitor the funds and adjust rates. Additionally, some of the issues identified during the audit period were the result of positions left vacant, upcoming large equipment purchases, and an ITSD rate reduction credit applicable in fiscal year 2019. As a result, we currently make no additional recommendation to the department. The next financial-compliance audit of the department will determine the reasonableness of fees charged and fund equity balances in the department's internal service funds for fiscal years 2021 and 2022, as required by state law.

Chapter II – Findings and Recommendations

Local Government Services Accounts Receivable

Local Government Services does not write off uncollectible accounts from local governments.

The Department of Administration's (department) Local Government Services Bureau works with local governments to ensure uniform financial accountability, and to assist the local governments in complying with their statutory financial and budgetary reporting requirements, including provisions of the Montana Single Audit Act and the local Government Budget Act.

Local governments entities are required to file an annual financial report with Local Government Services. Entities with annual revenues greater than \$750,000 are also required to pay a filing fee. If the payment has not been received within 60 days of the report being filed, a 10 percent penalty is assessed monthly until the payment is received. A penalty is also assessed if the entity does not file the report at all. Entities receive monthly statements that show the outstanding fees and penalties due. State law also allows the department to stop payment of any state financial assistance to the local government instead of charging the late payment penalty. Withholding assistance is only done at the discretion of the department's Director's Office.

State law allows the department to stop payment for any financial assistance to the local government entity instead of charging the late payment penalty, but this option is only used as a last resort. Additionally, state law allows the department to waive fines, fees, and penalties if the entity shows good cause or demonstrates their failure to comply was not within their control.

Local Government Services records an accounts receivable for fees and penalties not yet received. Additionally, they record an allowance for doubtful accounts for what they believe is uncollectible. Each year-end, the department adjusts the allowance for doubtful accounts balance based on what is believed to be uncollectible. The department still assesses penalties and adds to the account receivable for entities, even if it has previously determined the full balance of the receivable is uncollectible. The department continues to assess penalties for reports from as far back as fiscal year 2010.

At fiscal year-end 2019 and 2020, Local Government Services had \$172,157 and \$192,448 in accounts receivable for 65 and 90 local governments, respectively. These receivables include amounts due for filing fees as well as late penalty fees. The

corresponding allowance for doubtful accounts balances were \$107,550 for 6 local governments and \$154,109 for 9 local governments at each fiscal year-end 2019 and 2020, respectively. The percentage of total accounts receivable that has been determined to be uncollectible is over 60 percent in each year. The only way receivables are removed from the state's accounting records is if the entity pays them off, or they are waived by the department, which is only done after the department has received the report causing the penalty to be assessed.

State accounting policy requires state agencies to write off receivables that are deemed to be uncollectible. Additionally, policy requires agencies to transfer accounts receivable deemed uncollectible to the Department of Revenue or an outside collection agency. The department's policies and procedures do not direct employees to comply with state policy regarding writing off and transferring uncollectible accounts. No write-offs of uncollectible accounts have occurred since the allowance account was established in fiscal year 2016. Additionally, no receivables have been transferred to the Department of Revenue or a collection agency. The department currently does not have adequate policies and procedures to determine when accounts are uncollectible and when uncollectible accounts should be written off or transferred. Based on our observations, the department has not complied with state accounting policy.

RECOMMENDATION #1

We recommend the Department of Administration:

- A. Comply with state accounting policy for writing off and transferring uncollectible accounts from local governments.
- B. Implement policies and procedures for determining when receivables are uncollectible and when to write off or transfer uncollectible accounts.

Incorrect Contract Payments

The department can enhance internal controls to ensure contract payments are in compliance with contract requirements.

The department manages a large number of contracts for services provided to the state. Specifically, contracts paid by General Services Division can cover multiple locations and services provided to a variety of state agencies. The contracts provide for payment requirements and schedules that the department is required to follow. The department is obligated to pay the total contract price. Other Services expenditures paid by the

division during the audit period totaled approximately \$8 million. During the audit we reviewed payments to six vendors totaling approximately \$5 million. The contracts were all for services at multiple locations that are billed monthly. We identified payment issues for two of the six vendors:

- One contract provides facility improvement services to over 50 state buildings. During the audit period, there were two buildings that were not invoiced for the correct amount. An amendment to the contract reduced the allowable charge for the buildings, but the payment amount was not reduced, resulting in overpayments. These overpayments occurred for 26 months and totaled approximately \$12,100. Additionally, for one building, a contract amendment raised the amount to be paid for the building, but for two months, the old rate was paid resulting in an underpayment of \$1,890. Per information from staff, pricing sheets were not updated with the contract amendments and staff did not timely identify the incorrect payments.
- The second contract is to provide cleaning services for 8 state buildings. There were multiple instances during the audit period where the vendor failed to claim certain allowable line items, resulting in the state being invoiced for less than the contract total. This resulted in the state underpaying on the contract amount in both fiscal years by approximately \$13,600. Additionally, there was a separate contract that covered one building that expired at the end of fiscal year 2019. At that time, a different vendor signed a contract to service the building. However, the original vendor invoiced the department in October 2019 for \$1,127 after their contract had terminated. The state paid this invoice, although the vendor provided no services. This invoice was the result of a computer system issue at the vendor; however, the department staff did not catch the error.

As a result of the issues documented above, there were overpayments and underpayments in both fiscal years. The department worked with the vendors and have since addressed

and corrected the payment errors summarized in Table 1.

The department can enhance internal controls to ensure correct payments are made per contract requirements. Overall, staff attributed the contract issues they experienced to the fact that there has been significant

_	Table 1	
Contrac	t Payment Er	rors
	EV0040	-

	FY2019	FY2020
Over Payments	\$ 6,132	\$ 7,199
Under Payments	(\$ 7,753)	(\$ 7,784)
TOTAL	(\$ 1,621)	(\$ 585)

Source: Compiled by the Legislative Audit Division.

turnover in accounting and with contract managers. Additionally, the department experienced timing issues related to contract change orders and amendments. The new staff overseeing these contracts have since spent time organizing and cleaning up the contract files to address billing issues. Staff working with contracted vendors were also registered for contract management and procurement classes provided by the state. While the department represents it is taking steps to address staff education

and improve organization of contract files, the department should also enhance its internal control over contracting going forward. We only reviewed a small portion of the contracts the department manages. The department should be aware that payment issues could have occurred with other contracts.

RECOMMENDATION #2

We recommend the Department of Administration enhance review procedures to ensure contract payments are complete and accurate and in accordance with contract provisions.

Independent Auditor's Report and Department Financial Schedules

Angus Maciver, Legislative Auditor Deborah F. Butler, Legal Counsel



Deputy Legislative Auditors: Cindy Jorgenson William Soller

Independent Auditor's Report

The Legislative Audit Committee of the Montana State Legislature:

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity & Property Held in Trust, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, of the Department of Administration, and the related notes to the financial schedules.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Schedules

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial schedules in accordance with the regulatory format prescribed by the Legislative Audit Committee, based on the transactions posted to the state's accounting system without adjustment; this responsibility includes recording transactions in accordance with state accounting policy; and designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial schedules that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial schedules based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial schedules are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial schedules. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial schedules, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the department's preparation and fair presentation of the financial schedules in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the department's internal control, and accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as the overall presentation of the financial schedules.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Adverse Opinions on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

As described in Note 1, the financial schedules are prepared from the transactions posted to the state's primary accounting system without adjustment, in the regulatory format prescribed by the Legislative Audit Committee. This is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial schedules are not intended to, and do not, report assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and cash flows.

The effects on the financial schedules of the variances between the regulatory basis of accounting described in Note 1 and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, although not reasonably determinable, are presumed to be material.

Adverse Opinions on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the "Basis for Adverse Opinions on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" paragraph, the financial schedules referred to above do not present fairly, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial position of the department as of June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2019, or changes in financial position or cash flows for the years then ended.

Unmodified Opinions on Regulatory Basis of Accounting

In our opinion, the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity & Property Held In Trust, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and changes in fund equity and property held in trust of the Department of Administration, in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 – Basis of Presentation, the financial schedule format was adopted by the Legislative Audit Committee. On June 16, 2020, the Committee approved a change in format to remove the presentation of revenue estimates from the Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

In fiscal year 2020, the state adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84–Fiduciary Activities. Implementation of the standard necessitated elimination of the presentation of property held in trust, and its additions and reductions, on the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2020, on our consideration of the Department of Administration's control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Cindy Jorgenson

Cindy Jorgenson, CPA Deputy Legislative Auditor Helena, MT

October 28, 2020

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FUND EQUITY: July 1, 2019	General Fr	nd 124,924 \$	State Special Revenue Fund 87,206,273 \$	Federal Special Revenue Fund (115,629) \$	Debt Service Fund 38,910 \$	Capital Projects Fund 33,222,901 \$	Enterprise Fund 1,003,138 \$	Internal Service Fund 88,230,105 \$	Private Purpose Trust Fund 374,442 \$	Pension Trust Fund 11,586,253 \$	Unexpended Plant Fund (2,338,303) \$	Renewal & Replacement Fund (773,921)
ADDITIONS												
Budgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	/11	568,777	75,585,047	39,724,101		26,627,646	69,879,766	361,684,122				
Nonbudgeted Revenues & Transfers-In		466,914	60,167,649	39,724,101	8,150,356	3,132,212	30,211	2,643,256	2,091,477	4,379,340		
Prior Year Revenues & Transfers-In Adjustments	э	4,920		(892,448)	0,130,330	366,455	(372)	2,043,230 864,637	2,031,477	4,379,340		
•	400		1,357,507				, ,			524 224	0.440.050	F 225 760
Direct Entries to Fund Equity		156,409	23,144,379	5,753,425		7,433,497	164,778	1,938,776		531,324	9,440,959	5,325,760
Total Additions	231	197,019	160,254,583	44,585,079	8,150,356	37,559,809	70,074,383	367,130,791	2,091,477	4,910,664	9,440,959	5,325,760
REDUCTIONS												
Budgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	100	322,917	64,995,348	45,805,576		37,808,062	59,624,601	293,932,951		541,409	10,356,832	4,655,423
Nonbudgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	122	370,525	9,569,189	113,718	8,189,266	2,474,116	9,828,517	40,243,129	1,992,797	3,373,112		
Prior Year Expenditures & Transfers-Out Adjustments		(8)	608,413	(1,000)		495,655	681	(105,903)				
Total Reductions	222	693,434	75,172,950	45,918,294	8,189,266	40,777,834	69,453,798	334,070,177	1,992,797	3,914,521	10,356,832	4,655,423
FUND EQUITY: June 30, 2020	\$ 498	628,509 \$	172,287,906 \$	(1,448,844) \$	0 \$	30,004,877 \$	1,623,723 \$	121,290,719 \$	473,122 \$	12,582,396 \$	(3,254,176) \$	(103,584)

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY & PROPERTY HELD IN TRUST FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	General Fund	State Special Revenue Fund	Federal Special Revenue Fund	Debt Service Fund	Capital Projects Fund	Enterprise Fund	Internal Service Fund	Agency Fund	Private Purpose Trust Fund	Pension Trust Fund	Unexpended Plant Fund	Renewal & Replacement Fund
FUND EQUITY: July 1, 2018	\$ 314,950,995	\$ 22,389,063	\$ (264,728) \$	22,581	\$ 35,387,038 \$	1,130,580 \$	51,955,440 \$	0 \$	532,315 \$	10,702,822 \$	(6,233,697) \$	(626,993)
PROPERTY HELD IN TRUST: July 1, 2018							\$	18,950,461				
ADDITIONS												
Budgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	48,656,907	20,574,866	15,372,673		6,984,921	69,502,413	336,976,807					
Nonbudgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	46,776,251	74,162,055	1	9,330,928	202,532	72,498	982,776		2,356,864	4,020,685		
Prior Year Revenues & Transfers-In Adjustments	20,054	1,026,586	21,499		3,035	1,977	(272,236)		435			166,259
Direct Entries to Fund Equity	287,043,322	26,934,744	1,183,273		7,599,838	(372)	547,072		(102,650)	(4,479)	37,989,703	3,519,208
Additions to Property Held in Trust								1,027,820,492				
Total Additions	382,496,534	122,698,252	16,577,445	9,330,928	14,790,327	69,576,516	338,234,419	1,027,820,492	2,254,649	4,016,206	37,989,703	3,685,467
REDUCTIONS												
Budgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	98,196,568	39,762,499	16,301,327		15,217,960	56,608,271	301,740,129				34,094,309	3,666,136
Nonbudgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	109,020,109	17,992,647	127,019	9,314,599	1,734,612	13,101,012	9,003,401		2,412,523	3,132,775		
Prior Year Expenditures & Transfers-Out Adjustments	105,929	125,897			1,892	(5,325)	(8,783,776)					166,259
Reductions in Property Held in Trust								1,041,766,912				
Total Reductions	207,322,606	57,881,042	16,428,346	9,314,599	16,954,463	69,703,958	301,959,754	1,041,766,912	2,412,523	3,132,775	34,094,309	3,832,395
FUND EQUITY: June 30, 2019	\$ 490,124,924	\$ 87,206,273	\$ (115,629) \$	38,910	\$ 33,222,901 \$	1,003,138 \$	88,230,105 \$	0 \$	374,442 \$	11,586,253 \$	(2,338,303) \$	(773,921)
PROPERTY HELD IN TRUST: June 30, 2019					 =		\$	5,004,042				<u> </u>

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS-IN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

		General Fund		State Special Revenue Fund	deral Special evenue Fund	Debt Service Fund		Capital Projects Fund		Enterprise Fund	Internal Service Fund		Private Purpose Trust Fund	I	Pension Trust Fund	Total
TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS-IN BY CLASS	_		_		 	 	_				 	_				
Licenses and Permits			\$	2,137,110					\$	28,945					\$	2,166,055
Charges for Services	\$	9,372,966	·	3,615,513			\$	77,261	•	8,874,148	\$ 311,495,972		:	\$	181,712	333,617,572
Investment Earnings		20,237,259		185,978	\$ 60			385,390		47,571	3,424,228				345,841	24,626,327
Fines and Forfeits		3,462,051								50,524	44,486					3,557,061
Capital Contributions										927,061						927,061
Sale of Documents, Merchandise and Property				205,385						59,854,653	18,990					60,079,027
Rentals, Leases and Royalties											90					90
Contributions and Premiums															3,851,137	3,851,137
Grants, Contracts, and Donations				34,349								\$	2,091,477		650	2,126,476
Transfers-in		11,490,997		61,768,615	25,732,738	\$ 8,150,356		29,025,899		100,000	34,471,920					170,740,524
Bond Proceeds				33,260,830												33,260,830
Capital Asset Sale Proceeds		10,492														10,492
Inception of Lease/Installment Contract		8,817		10,122												18,939
Miscellaneous		142,039		35,892,302				637,763		26,703	10,235,589					46,934,397
Federal		315,990		_	 13,098,856	 					 5,500,740					18,915,586
Total Revenues & Transfers-In		45,040,611		137,110,204	 38,831,654	 8,150,356		30,126,313		69,909,605	 365,192,015		2,091,477		4,379,340	700,831,574
Less: Nonbudgeted Revenues & Transfers-In		3,466,914		60,167,649	1	8,150,356		3,132,212		30,211	2,643,256		2,091,477		4,379,340	84,061,417
Prior Year Revenues & Transfers-In Adjustments		4,920		1,357,507	 (892,448)	 		366,455		(372)	 864,637					1,700,699
Actual Budgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	\$	41,568,777	\$	75,585,047	\$ 39,724,101	\$ 0	\$	26,627,646	\$	69,879,766	\$ 361,684,122	\$	0	\$	0 \$	615,069,459

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS-IN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	General Fund	State Special Revenue Fund	Federal Special Revenue Fund	Debt Service Fund	Capital Projects Fund	Enterprise Internal Service Fund Fund		Private Purpose Trust Fund	Pension Trust Fund	Renewal & Replacement Fund	Total
TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS-IN BY CLASS											
Licenses and Permits	\$	1,092,445			\$	10,784				\$	1,103,229
Charges for Services \$	8,383,166	4,212,193			162,499	8,600,205 \$	309,625,137				330,983,201
Investment Earnings	23,724,116	158,206 \$	29		413,039	63,927	3,438,877	Ç	592,220		28,390,412
Fines and Forfeits	3,868,663					87,623					3,956,286
Capital Contributions						490,293	(178,950)		;	\$ 166,259	477,602
Sale of Documents, Merchandise and Property		211,011				60,254,123	12,368				60,477,502
Rentals, Leases and Royalties							90				90
Contributions and Premiums									3,428,465		3,428,465
Grants, Contracts, and Donations	21,746	41,339					\$	2,357,299			2,420,384
Transfers-in	58,971,658	75,765,887	21,929 \$	9,330,928 \$	6,614,951	68,546	12,706,371				163,480,270
Capital Asset Sale Proceeds	29,477										29,477
Miscellaneous	155,881	14,282,427				1,387	8,703,390				23,143,085
Federal	298,506		15,372,214				3,380,064				19,050,784
Total Revenues & Transfers-In	95,453,212	95,763,508	15,394,172	9,330,928	7,190,488	69,576,888	337,687,347	2,357,299	4,020,685	166,259	636,940,788
Less: Nonbudgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	46,776,251	74,162,055	1	9,330,928	202,532	72,498	982,776	2,356,864	4,020,685		137,904,591
Prior Year Revenues & Transfers-In Adjustments	20,054	1,026,586	21,499		3,035	1,977	(272,236)	435		166,259	967,609
Actual Budgeted Revenues & Transfers-In	48,656,907	20,574,866	15,372,673	0	6,984,921	69,502,413	336,976,807	0	0	0	498,068,588
Estimated Revenues & Transfers-In	42,323,973	23,933,281	14,537,817		40,246,293	65,561,844	330,948,905				517,552,112
Budgeted Revenues & Transfers-In Over (Under) Estimated \$	6,332,934 \$	(3,358,415) \$	834,856 \$	0 \$	(33,261,371) \$	3,940,569 \$	6,027,902 \$	0 \$	0	\$ 0 \$	(19,483,524)

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

							TON THE HOUSE TENNE											
PROGRAM (ORG) EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT	Architecture & Engineering Division	Corrections	Departments & Agencies	Director's Office	Division of Banking & Financial Ins	DPHHS	General Services Division	Health Care & Benefits Division	Montana State Lottery	Montana Tax Appeal Board	Risk Management & Tort Defense Division	State Financial Services Division	State Human Resources Division	State IT Services Division	University System	Total		
Personal Services Salaries	\$ 1,230,111		\$	2,128,385 \$	\$ 2,357,440	\$	3,720,521 \$	1,378,636 \$	1,707,676 \$	309,859 \$	1,281,111 \$	3,756,495 \$	2,737,018 \$	13,803,122	\$	34,410,372		
Other Compensation Employee Benefits	414,842			500 552,863	828,452		1,211,208	348,690	1600 559,570	15,255 115,576	330,407	1,278,050	671,757	3,391,818		17,355 9,703,233		
Personal Services-Other				40326			3,672	(60,779)	47,351		29,827	74,756	5,349	195,038		335,540		
Total	1,644,953			2,722,074	3,185,892		4,935,400	1,666,547	2,316,197	440,690	1,641,345	5,109,301	3,414,124	17,389,978		44,466,500		
Operating Expenses	205.044			247.000	200.205		4 277 255	40.000.405	0.000.004	24.005	0.570.050	202 445	500.055	4 055 505		40.050.555		
Other Services Supplies & Materials	326,841 83,106			347,893 417,618	208,236 90,484		4,277,055 523,214	13,088,485 43,934	9,636,564 302,286	24,325 9,107	8,673,962 49,067	890,415 485,780	623,256 149,730	1,955,635 2,908,736		40,052,666 5,063,062		
Communications Travel	27,662 32,551			47,341 17,925	68,936 197,030		4,492,969 22,336	78,384 6,410	641,347 26,400	12,326 12,819	24,241 15,817	360,554 32,990	44,961 24,793	5,073,545 188,984		10,872,266 578,054		
Rent	68,168			89,657	167,943		348,367	433,639	222,763	45,960	89,894	135,261	153,196	1,079,010		2,833,858		
Utilities Repair & Maintenance				134,513	57,321		1985681.7 1,297,900	161	16944.55 17,726	204	2,454	1,443,377	813,247	111928.71 19,884,869		2,114,555 23,651,771		
Other Expenses	165,266		94,108	194,837	213,454		1,897,529	701,853	37,249,662	18,466	432,451	3,143,241	188,764	4,816,573	472,804	49,589,009		
Goods Purchased For Resale Total	703,593		94,108	1,249,784	1,003,404		2892708.78 17,737,760	14,352,865	940438.55 49,054,131	123,206	9,287,892	6,491,618	1,997,947	36,019,281	472,804	3,833,152 138,588,393		
Equipment & Intangible Assets																		
Equipment					71,396	80,000	(69,672)								251,453	333,177		
Capital leases - equipment Total	5,116 5,116				71,396	80,000	(69,672)								251,453	5,116 338,293		
Capital Outlay					<u> </u>									•	<u> </u>	·		
Land & Interest In Land	\$	-,,														1,310,873		
Buildings Total		2,214,577 3,525,450	13,403,618 13,403,618			10,968,495 10,968,495									26,411,182 26,411,182	52,997,871 54,308,744		
		3,323,130	13,103,010			10,500,155								•	20,111,102	31,300,711		
Local Assistance From State Sources				47,099,864						2,188						47,102,052		
From Federal Sources Total				20,993,701 68,093,565					-	2,188		22,609,403 22,609,403				43,603,104 90,705,156		
Total				08,093,303					-	2,188		22,009,403				90,703,136		
Grants From State Sources														8,974,756		8,974,756		
Grant To Governmental Entities											236,350					236,350		
Total											236,350			8,974,756		9,211,106		
Benefits & Claims								101 522 050					222 074			101 747 022		
From State Sources Insurance Payments								181,523,958 85,456			50,579,100		223,874			181,747,832 50,664,556		
Total								181,609,414			50,579,100		223,874			232,412,388		
Transfers-out																		
Fund transfers Intra-Entity Expense	2,465,000		3,123,845	162,200,684 9,200,000		10,056,637	427,082		8,573,078		34,086,792	4,323,732		472,992	151,635	225,881,476 9,200,000		
Total	2,465,000		3,123,845	171,400,684		10,056,637	427,082	- -	8,573,078		34,086,792	4,323,732		472,992	151,635	235,081,476		
Debt Service																		
Bonds Loans			31,696	8,447,789			37378.67							19,378		8,447,789 88,453		
Capital Leases	1,328			86	1,398		15,680	127			72	2,259	333	216,523		237,806		
Total	1,328		31,696	8,447,875	1,398		53,058	127			72	2,259	333	235,901		8,774,048		
Post Employment Benefits				4 700			44.757		5.400		2.224	5.500		22.455		75.004		
Other Post Employment Benefits Employer Pension Expense				4,708 213,504			14,757 439,872	3,899 169,389	6,139 200,503		3,321 154,040	5,560 245,900	4,474 218,744	33,165 1,591,246		76,024 3,233,198		
Total				218,212			454,629	173,288	206,642		157,361	251,460	223,219	1,624,411		3,309,222		
Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out	\$ 4,819,990 \$	3,525,450	16,653,267	252,132,194	\$ 4,262,090 \$	21,105,132 \$	23,538,258 \$	197,802,242 \$	60,150,047 \$	566,084 \$	95,988,913 \$	38,787,773 \$	5,859,496 \$	64,717,318	27,287,074 \$	817,195,327		
EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT BY FUND																		
General Fund State Special Revenue Fund	\$ 2,354,990 \$	120,000	\$ 3,379,068	212,393,398 13,991,812	\$ 4,262,090 \$	4,196,969 \$	85,000	\$	\$ 173,038	566,084 \$	\$ 34,086,792	5,329,631 \$ 2,592,431	1,675,695 \$	2,728,627 \$ 9,929,126	1,635 \$	222,693,434 75,172,950		
Federal Special Revenue Fund			113,655	14,616,012		6,080,597						22,615,395		2,492,635		45,918,294		
Debt Service Fund Capital Projects Fund	2,465,000	3,172,365	12,512,523	8,189,266		10,827,566									11,800,380	8,189,266 40,777,834		
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund		233,085	105,613	2,941,707			1,555,709 \$ 21,897,548	6,831,595 187,598,534	59,977,009		61,902,121	983,872 5,273,647	4,183,801	49,566,930	472,804	69,453,798 334,070,177		
Private Purpose Trust Fund		233,003		2,341,707			21,037,540				01,302,121	1,992,797	4,103,001	43,300,330	472,004	1,992,797		
Pension Trust Fund			542,409					3,372,112							10,356,832	3,914,521 10,356,832		
Tabel Survey discuss 0 Target C.	1010.5	2 525 457	45.550.05	350 100 10	100000	26 105 10-	22 522 25	407.000.045				20 303 33-	E 050 10-		4,655,423	4,655,423		
Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out Less: Nonbudgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	4,819,990 2,470,116	3,525,450	16,653,267 10,116	252,132,194 137,654,301	4,262,090 5,006	21,105,132	23,538,258 900,217	197,802,242 3,554,043	60,150,047 8,779,818	566,084	95,988,913 38,033,504	38,787,773 4,871,664	5,859,496 (7,989)	64,717,318 1,883,573	27,287,074	817,195,327 198,154,370		
Prior Year Expenditures & Transfers-Out Adjustments Actual Budgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	(2,036) 2,351,910	3,525,450	(5,345) 16,648,496	(37,010) 114,514,904	30,556 4,226,527	993,120 20,112,012	(14,463)	509 194,247,689	1,166 51,369,063	566,084	(43,157) 57,998,565	(412) 33,916,521	5,867,485	74,910 62,758,835	27,287,074	997,838 618,043,118		
Budget Authority	2,508,183	12,432,211	224,827,773	120,708,210	4,326,514	60,106,164	23,710,915	202,190,009	53,246,960	694,448	60,452,618	92,793,572	6,209,357	132,130,533	213,673,590	1,210,011,058		
Unspent Budget Authority	\$ 156,273 \$	8,906,762	\$ 208,179,277	6,193,306	\$ 99,987 \$	39,994,152	1,058,411 \$	7,942,320 \$	1,877,897 \$	128,364 \$	2,454,053 \$	58,877,051 \$	341,872 \$	69,371,698 \$	186,386,517 \$	591,967,940		
UNSPENT BUDGET AUTHORITY BY FUND																		
General Fund			Ş	682,249					\$	128,364	\$	188,576 \$	22,330 \$		\$	1,519,281		
State Special Revenue Fund Federal Special Revenue Fund	\$ 156,273 \$	330,372 1,000,000	\$ 44,921,136 45,187,227	1,112,859 \$ 4,234,375	\$ 99,987	12,959,007 3,618,024		\$	26,962	\$	458,708	10,387 57,890,597		20,967,467 41,506,860	739,221 2,216,926	81,782,379 155,654,009		
Capital Projects Fund		3,749,591	116,860,120	7,234,373		23,417,121								5,515,726	38,142,162	187,684,720		
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund		426,883 3,399,915	1,200,000 2,203	163,823		\$	12,702 \$ 1,045,710	147,498 7,794,822	1,850,935		1,995,345	57,401 730,090	319,542	883,884	602,807	3,695,419 16,938,140		
Pension Trust Fund		-,,	8,591	,9			,,,,,,,,	, - ,			,,-	,	,,-	,		8,591		
Unexpended Plant Fund Renewal & Replacement Fund															124,606,485 20,078,916	124,606,485 20,078,916		
Unspent Budget Authority	\$ 156,273 \$	8,906,762	\$ 208,179,277	6,193,306	\$ 99,987 \$	39,994,152 \$	1,058,411 \$	7,942,320 \$	1,877,897 \$	128,364 \$	2,454,053 \$	58,877,051 \$	341,872 \$	69,371,698 \$	186,386,517 \$	591,967,940		

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION SCHEDULE OF TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019																
	Architecture &		Departments &	Director's	Division of Banking &		General Services	Health Care &	Montana State	Montana Tax	Risk Managemtent &	State Financial	State Human	State IT Services	University	
PROGRAM (ORG) EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT	Engineering Division	Corrections	Agencies	Office	Financial Ins	DPHHS	Division	Beneftis Division	Lottery	Appeal Board	Tort Defense Division	Services Division	ResourcesDivision	Division	System	Total
Personal Services Salaries	\$ 1,098,394		Ś	1,895,840 \$	2,320,414	Ś	3,594,512 \$	1,249,362 \$	1,597,969 \$	319,456 \$	1,194,597 \$	3,597,526 \$	2,727,487 \$	12,847,082 \$	Ś :	32,442,637
Other Compensation			•	1,000		•			600	4,230						5,830
Employee Benefits Personal Services-Other	377,395			521,153 6,569	812,696		1,348,802 47,193	358,586 37,732	545,021 11,311	114,561	313,264 (595)	1,179,029 (23,071)	797,599 6,415	3,419,973 33,665		9,788,077 119,219
Total	1,475,788		=	2,424,562	3,133,110	_	4,990,506	1,645,680	2,154,901	438,246	1,507,266	4,753,484	3,531,501	16,300,720		42,355,764
Operating Expenses																
Other Services Supplies & Materials	249,452			316,416 49,048	160,085 61,740		4,260,109	13,872,676 50,444	9,099,355	26,133 9,520	7,447,766 38,598	630,823 168,362	609,073 162,629	2,234,126		38,906,014
Communications	15,552 22,692			41,079	48,872		454,140 4,303,037	65,683	213,829 594,466	10,499	21,486	331,889	43,262	(7,395,710) 5,805,411		(6,171,849) 11,288,375
Travel Rent	32,487 68,518			18,326 93,040	263,954 170,042		14,454 298,879	13,382 429,408	26,556 222,036	2,233 47,439	18,459 91,787	45,292 140,927	24,287 152,406	196,578 936,701		656,008 2,651,183
Utilities					170,042		2,002,448	423,400	16,954					104,509		2,123,911
Repair & Maintenance Other Expenses	5,033 98,426 \$	(178,950) \$	19,500	552 211,455	147,574		1,048,978 1,708,899	782,313	16,441 34,878,775	60 17,721	1,089 285,420	1,418,031 3,425,427	781,132 158,200	14,194,622 5,848,665		17,465,938 47,582,819
Goods Purchased For Resale						_	3,381,730		919,887							4,301,617
Total	492,159	(178,950)	19,500	729,916	852,266	-	17,472,675	15,213,906	45,988,299	113,605	7,904,604	6,160,751	1,930,990	21,924,902	179,394 1:	18,804,016
Equipment & Intangible Assets			2.005		70.450		50.570							40.005	2 522 402	2 770 022
Equipment Total			3,995 3,995		72,158 72,158	_	69,672 69,672						_	10,095 10,095		2,778,023 2,778,023
Carribal Outland						_							_			
Capital Outlay Buildings		3,996,467	8,613,981		\$	3,515,224	119,500					(37,472)			37,073,545	53,281,245
Other Improvements Total		3.996.467	8,613,981			3,515,224	(119,500)				=	(37,472)			37,073,545	(119,500) 53,161,745
		3,330,407	0,013,301			5,515,224	<u> </u>				-	(51,412)			57,075,545	,101,173
Local Assistance From State Sources				46,610,607						806					4	46,611,413
From Federal Sources			_	21,126,125					_							21,126,125
Total			-	67,736,732					-	806					6	67,737,539
Grants From State Sources														9,398,420		9,398,420
Grant To Governmental Entities											178,031			9,398,420		178,031
Total											178,031			9,398,420		9,576,451
Benefits & Claims																
To Individuals From State Sources								1,141,587 190,447,191					225,170			1,141,587 90,672,361
Insurance Payments							_	1,177,527			15,404,537	_			<u></u> :	16,582,064
Total							_	192,766,305			15,404,537	_	225,170			08,396,012
Transfers-out Fund transfers	1,750,000	381,271	3,143,629	146,438,593		1,142,258	228,546		12,214,709		12,639,971	5,194,361		12,310,519	6,158 19	95,450,015
Intra-Entity Expense	1,750,000	561,271	3,143,029	10,000,000		1,142,236	228,340		12,214,709		12,039,971	5,194,301		12,310,319		10,000,000
Total	1,750,000	381,271	3,143,629	156,438,593		1,142,258	228,546		12,214,709		12,639,971	5,194,361		12,310,519	6,158 20	05,450,015
Debt Service																
Bonds Loans				9,318,049			31,447							830,308		9,318,049 861,755
Capital Leases			-			_	11,299						_	238,452	-	249,752
Total			-	9,318,049		_	42,746						_	1,068,760		10,429,555
Post Employment Benefits Other Post Employment Benefits				6,662			21,956	5,822	8,784		4,743	7,836	6,790	48,163		110,756
Employer Pension Expense			_	225,121		_	916,224	157,485	230,059		255,221	62,531	233,241	2,157,016		4,236,896
Total			=	231,783		_	938,179	163,306	238,843		259,964	70,368	240,031	2,205,178		4,347,652
Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out	\$ 3,717,948 \$	4,198,789 \$	11,781,105 \$	236,879,634 \$	4,057,533 \$	4,657,483 \$	23,742,324 \$	209,789,198 \$	60,596,751 \$	552,658 \$	37,894,373 \$	16,141,491 \$	5,927,692 \$	63,218,594 \$	39,881,198 \$ 72	23,036,771
EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS-OUT BY FUND																
				400												07.000.00
General Fund State Special Revenue Fund	\$ 1,967,948 \$	350,000 31,271 \$	\$ 2,894,164	199,315,416 11,073,191 \$	4,057,533 \$	227,280 \$	85,000	\$	\$ 173,633	552,658 \$	\$ 12,639,971	5,104,769 \$ 2,393,166	1,608,792 \$ 450	390,970 \$ 22,331,277		07,322,606 57,881,042
Federal Special Revenue Fund Debt Service Fund			1,011,376	14,433,482		936,786	•		•			2,376		44,326	:	16,428,346
Capital Projects Fund	1,750,000	2,064,627	7,875,565	9,314,599		3,493,417										9,314,599 16,954,463
Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund		117,541 1,635,349		2,742,945			1,388,724 \$ 22,268,600	7,267,042 199,389,381	60,423,118		25,254,402	507,534 5,721,122	4,318,450	40,452,021		69,703,958 01,959,754
Private Purpose Trust Fund		1,000,040		2,172,343			22,200,000				23,234,402	2,412,523	7,510,430	70,732,021		2,412,523
Pension Trust Fund Unexpended Plant Fund								3,132,775								3,132,775 34,094,309
Renewal & Replacement Fund															3,832,395	3,832,395
Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out Less: Nonbudgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out	3,717,948 1,750,000	4,198,789 1,720,742	11,781,105 9,045	236,879,634 122,844,787	4,057,533	4,657,483	23,742,324 1,404,500	209,789,198 4,506,751	60,596,751 12,338,807	552,658	37,894,373 1,279,094	16,141,491 5,647,478	5,927,692 110,454	63,218,594 14,227,040		23,036,771 65,838,697
Prior Year Expenditures & Transfers-Out Adjustments	7	8,414	(20,056)	86,970	4.057.505	3,784	(25,187)	(37,992)	(12,838)	74	(207,575)	350	(2,360)	(8,348,974)	166,259	(8,389,124)
Actual Budgeted Expenditures & Transfers-Out Budget Authority	1,967,941 2,247,015	2,469,632 7,785,106	11,792,116 152,782,838	113,947,876 120,233,437	4,057,533 4,190,356	4,653,699 55,729,213	22,363,011 22,835,780	205,320,439 208,188,085	48,270,782 50,149,789	552,584 613,927	36,822,854 40,166,653	10,493,664 11,531,488	5,819,598 6,088,872	57,340,529 131,835,449	158,673,486 9	65,587,199 73,051,493
Unspent Budget Authority	\$ 279,074 \$	5,315,474 \$	140,990,722 \$	6,285,561 \$	132,822 \$	51,075,514 \$	472,769 \$	2,867,646 \$	1,879,006 \$	61,343 \$	3,343,798 \$	1,037,824 \$	269,274 \$	74,494,920 \$	118,958,546 \$ 40	07,464,295
UNSPENT BUDGET AUTHORITY BY FUND																
General Fund			ė	859,637					ė	61,343	\$	218,200 \$	13,882 \$	56,503	Ś	1,209,566
State Special Revenue Fund	\$ 279,074 \$		49,618,564	1,367,338 \$	132,822	15,572,206		\$	26,367	\$	560,029	19,740	13,002 \$	20,228,400	740,856	88,875,767
Federal Special Revenue Fund Capital Projects Fund		1,000,000 2,925,218	28,631,182 62,738,773	3,847,344		9,698,621 25,804,687						216		45,295,647 8,176,326		90,689,936 13,736,046
Enterprise Fund		426,883				\$	7,811 \$	697,787	1,852,640			29,288				3,014,408
Internal Service Fund Unexpended Plant Fund		633,000	2,203	211,243			464,958	2,169,859			2,783,770	770,381	255,392	738,044		8,054,416 85,035,818
Renewal & Replacement Fund	6 270.07:		140,000,700	C 205 554 +	400.005	E1 075 511	470.700 *	2.007.045	4 070 000 *	C1 212 1	2242700 *	4.027.024. 4	200 274 +	74 404 000	16,848,338	16,848,338
Unspent Budget Authority	\$ 279,074 \$	5,315,474 \$	140,990,722 \$	6,285,561 \$	132,822	51,075,514 \$	472,769 \$	2,867,646 \$	1,879,006 \$	61,343 \$	3,343,798 \$	1,037,824 \$	269,274 \$	74,494,920	118,958,546 \$ 40	07,464,295

Department of Administration Notes to the Financial Schedules For the Two Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The department uses the modified accrual basis of accounting, as defined by state accounting policy, for its Governmental fund category (General, State Special Revenue, Federal Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service). In applying the modified accrual basis, the department records:

- Revenues when it receives cash or when receipts are realizable, measurable, earned, and available to pay current period liabilities.
- Expenditures for valid obligations when the department incurs the related liability and it is measurable, with the exception of the cost of employees' annual and sick leave. State accounting policy requires the department to record the cost of employees' annual and sick leave when used or paid.

The department uses accrual basis accounting for its Proprietary (Enterprise and Internal Service) and Fiduciary (Private-Purpose Trust, Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust, Agency/Custodial) and Plant (Unexpended and Renewal & Replacement) fund categories. Under the accrual basis, as defined by state accounting policy, the department records revenues in the accounting period when realizable, measurable, and earned, and records expenses in the period incurred when measurable.

Expenditures and expenses may include: entire budgeted service contracts even though the department receives the services in a subsequent fiscal year; goods ordered with a purchase order before fiscal year-end, but not received as of fiscal year-end; and equipment ordered with a purchase order before fiscal year-end.

Basis of Presentation

The financial schedule format was adopted by the Legislative Audit Committee (LAC). The financial schedules were prepared from the transactions posted to the state's accounting system without adjustment.

To reflect the total department operations, the financial schedules present the combined operations of two separate business units, Department of Administration and Long-Range Building, identified on the state's accounting system.

At the June 16, 2020 LAC meeting, the LAC approved two changes to the content of the regulatory basis special purpose framework for agency financial schedules.

Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity:

The LAC voted to exclude property held in trust activity from the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity beginning in fiscal year 2020. This change was necessary to facilitate implementation of GASB Statement 84 – Fiduciary Activities at the agency financial schedule level.

Schedule of Total Revenues and Transfers-In:

The LAC voted to exclude revenue estimate activity from the Schedule of Total Revenues and Transfers-In effective for the 2020 audit cycle.

As a result of these two changes:

Beginning with the fiscal year 2020 financial schedules, the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity will no longer report property held in trust line items. Additionally, the schedule title will no longer include property held in trust in its name.

Beginning with the fiscal year 2019 and fiscal year 2020 financial schedules opined on in the 2020 cycle, the Schedule of Total Revenues and Transfers-In will no longer report revenue estimate information.

The department uses the following funds:

Governmental Fund Category

- General Fund to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Department General Fund include the Office of Labor Relations, State Procurement Bureau, State Accounting Principles and Financial Section, the Human Resources Policy and Programs Bureau and the Montana Tax Appeal Board.
- State Special Revenue Fund to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than private-purpose trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific state program purposes. Department State Special Revenue Funds include Architecture and Engineering Construction, Banking and Financial Institutions Division, 911 Telecommunications Program, and Mineral Impact.
- Federal Special Revenue Fund to account for activities funded from federal revenue sources. Department Federal Special Revenue Funds include Federal Forest Reserve and Taylor Grazing Act funds.
- Debt Service Fund to account for accumulated resources for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest. The department uses this fund primarily for the Long-Range Building Program.
- ◆ Capital Projects Fund to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those

financed by proprietary funds or trust funds. The department uses this fund to account for activity in the Long-Range Building Program and for Long-Range Information Technology projects.

Proprietary Fund Category

- Internal Service Fund to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of state government or to other governmental entities on a cost-reimbursement basis. The department administers thirteen Internal Service Funds, the three largest of which are State Information Technology Services Division, Group Benefits, and Agency Insurance.
- ◆ Enterprise Fund to account for operations (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the Legislature intends that the department finance or recover costs primarily through user charges; (b) where the Legislature has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred or net income is appropriate; (c) where the activity is financed solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and charges of the activity; or (d) when laws or regulations require that the activities' cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges rather than with taxes or similar revenues. Department Enterprise Funds include Flexible Spending, Local Government Services, State Lottery, and Surplus Property.

Fiduciary Fund Category

- Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds to account for resources required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other post-employment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans. Department pension trust funds include the Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust.
- Private-Purpose Trust Fund to account for activity of any trust arrangement not properly reported in a pension fund or an investment trust fund where the principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Department private-purpose trust funds include Stale-Dated Warrants.
- Agency Fund to account for resources held by the state in a custodial capacity. Agency funds may be used on a limited basis for internal (to the State) clearing account activity, but these must have a zero balance at fiscal year-end. Central Payroll is a department agency fund in FY 2019. This activity is shown on the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity & Property Held in Trust.

Beginning in FY 2020, the State of Montana implemented GASB Statement 84. Central Payroll is now a clearing account, with no balances in equity, revenue or expenditures at year end. This activity is no longer reported on the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity.

Plant Fund Category

- Plant Funds to account for transactions related to construction of university properties. Because the Architecture and Engineering Division expends funds for university construction projects, the department records activity in the following sub-funds:
 - Unexpended Plant Funds comprised of amounts which have been appropriated or designated for construction or purchase of university improvements, buildings, and equipment.
 - Renewal and Replacement Funds provide resources for the remodeling or replacement of university properties.

2. General Fund Equity Balance

The department has authority to pay obligations from the statewide General Fund within its appropriation limits. The department's total assets placed in the fund exceed outstanding liabilities, resulting in positive ending fund equity balances for each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2020. As stated in note 3, the department is the administrator of the General Fund. As a result, the cash balances in the General Fund at fiscal year-end for all other state agencies are closed and recorded on the department's accounting records.

3. Direct Entries to Fund Equity

Direct entries to fund equity include entries generated by SABHRS to reflect the flow of resources within individual funds shared by separate agencies. Also, direct entries can be correction of certain errors.

Though the department is the administrator of the General Fund, it is not the only agency making entries to the General Fund. The direct entry to fund equity in the amount of \$287,043,322 in FY 2019 and \$186,156,409 in FY 2020 reflects the department closing cash balances of other agencies sharing the General Fund. The General Fund's fund equity balances shown on the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity and Property Held in Trust in FY 2019, and the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity in FY 2020, reflect only the department's activity and closing cash balances from other agencies, and not the total fund equity of the state's General Fund.

4. Governor's Office Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act)

At the end of FY 2020, the Department received a total of \$25,658,450 in federal CARES funding from administrative appropriations from the Governor's Office for the COVID 19 event.

The Director's Office expended \$586,361 for internal reimbursement costs related to the event.

The State Financial Services Division distributed \$288,463 to local governments for primary mail ballot postage costs, and \$22,320,940 for local government COVID 19 reimbursements.

The State Information Technology Division expended \$2,462,685 for a contract with ServiceNow for COVID 19 response tools.

In FY 2021, the Department has received \$234,529,251 of CARES Act funds from the Governor's Office for the COVID 19 event. Through October 27, 2020, the Department has disbursed \$71,143,478 to schools (K-12), and \$55,469,466 to local governments for costs related to this event.

5. <u>Unspent Budget Authority</u>

The Schedule of Total Expenditures and Transfers Out for FY 2019 and FY 2020 reflects that Corrections, Departments & Agencies, DPHHS, and University System have material unspent budget authority related to active projects administered by the Long-Range Building Program. The entire estimated cost of a project is encumbered when the project is started, although many projects are not completed in one fiscal year, resulting in unspent budget authority amounts on the schedule. The unspent budget amounts represent estimated costs to complete all projects.

17-7-212, MCA states that the remaining balances on capital projects previously approved by the legislature, are re-appropriated for the purposes of the original appropriation until the projects are completed.

There are some capital building projects where budget authority will be reported twice. For example, where authority is necessary for the fund transfer from one fund into another fund, and authority is also necessary for the expenditure of those funds received. The department follows M.O.M. 302XV for these projects costing more than \$500,000.

Similarly, the State Information Technology Services Division (SITSD) had material unspent budget authority in both years for Long-Range Information Technology Projects (LRITP) which were not completed. Much of this spending authority will be transferred to the administering agency when the LRITP is approved by SISTD.

2-17-560, MCA allows for the re-appropriation of LRITP until completion of the projects.

Material unspent federal budget authority on the FY 2020 Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers Out for State Financial Services Division was related to the original estimate of the first round of reimbursement for local governments under the CARES Act. These federal funds are available until December 30, 2020.

Material unspent budget authority in FY 2019 and FY 2020 for the Director's Office is primarily due to reduced Federal funding for the Secure Rural Schools (Forest Reserve) program.

Material unspent budget authority in FY 2019 and FY 2020 for Risk Management Tort Defense is due to an anticipated settlement that was not finalized until the next year.

Material unspent budget authority in FY 2019 and FY 2020 for Healthcare and Benefits Division is due to cost savings in both the medical and pharmacy plans.

6. Transfer Activity

As the State Treasurer, the Department statutorily transfers a significant amount of money from, and to, the General Fund. These transfers involve other funds within state government.

Transfers-Out

The General Fund transfers out activity includes moving funds to the Department's debt service funds for general obligation bonds; state contributions to the Montana Public Employees Retirement System, the Teachers Retirement System, budget stabilization fund, Department of Natural Resource and Conservation's fire, water adjudication and sage grouse stewardship funds; motor vehicle revenue to various state agencies; and the Old Fund administered by the Montana State Fund.

The total transfers-out in the Director's Office were \$156,438,593 in FY 2019 and \$171,400,684 in FY 2020. General Fund transfers-out totaled \$152,040,055 in FY2019 and \$164,630,697 in FY 2020. Contributing to this increase, from FY 2019 to FY 2020, was the \$9.0 million one-time transfer to the long-range building program for HB 652 from the 2019 session, and the increase by \$8.8 million in the transfer to the Fire Suppression fund.

Transfers-In

The General Fund Transfers-in were \$58,971,658 in FY 2019 and \$11,490,977 in FY 2020. The significant decrease between the two years is that HB 6 from the November 2017 Special Legislative Session, required multiple one-time transfers from various funds into the General Fund for FY 2018 and FY 2019. In FY 2019, these special session transfers-in included \$8,000,000 in highway revenue, and \$28,552,282 from the Fire Suppression Fund.

The Montana Lottery, which is attached to the Department of Administration, transfers net profits to the General Fund and, as required, to the Office of Commissioner of Higher Education (OCHE) for STEM scholarships. The transfer amounts for FY 2019 was \$12,214,709 to the General Fund and \$0 to OCHE. For FY 2020, the transfer amounts were \$8,073,079 to the General Fund and \$500,000 to OCHE.

7. Reorganization

There were no significant reorganizations during the audit period.

8. <u>University System Funds</u>

The Unexpended Plant Fund and Renewal & Replacement Fund categories show negative ending fund balances for the department in the FY 2019 Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity and Property Held in Trust and FY 2020 Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity due to the sharing of the related funds with the University System. The negative balance reflects only the department's activity, and not the total fund equity or activity for these shared funds.

Report on Internal Control and Compliance

Angus Maciver, Legislative Auditor Deborah F. Butler, Legal Counsel



Deputy Legislative Auditors: Cindy Jorgenson William Soller

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL SCHEDULES PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Legislative Audit Committee of the Montana State Legislature:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the Schedule of Changes in Fund Equity & Property Held in Trust, Schedule of Total Revenues & Transfers-In, and Schedule of Total Expenditures & Transfers-Out for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, of the Department of Administration, and the related notes to the financial schedules, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial schedules, we considered the department's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial schedules, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the department's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial schedules will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal controls was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the department's financial schedules are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination on financial schedule amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the department's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the department's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Cindy Jorgenson

Cindy Jorgenson, CPA Deputy Legislative Auditor Helena, MT

October 28, 2020

Department of Administration

Department Response



Director's OfficeSteve Bullock, Governor
John Lewis, Director

RECEIVED

NOV 2 3 2020

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT DIV.

November 23, 2020

Mr. Angus Maciver, Legislative Auditor Legislative Audit Division PO Box 201705 Helena, MT 59620

RE: Financial Compliance Audit #20-13: Department of Administration for the Two Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020

Dear Mr. Maciver,

The Department of Administration (DOA) has reviewed the Financial Compliance Audit for the two fiscal years ending June 30, 2020.

DOA wants to recognize and thank you and your staff for your work during this audit. We look upon the audit process as an opportunity to improve the department's operation and performance.

Our responses to the recommendations appear below.

Recommendation #1

We recommend the Department of Administration:

- A. Comply with state accounting policy for writing off and transferring uncollectable accounts from local governments.
- B. Implement policies and procedures for determining when receivables are uncollectable and when to write off or transfer uncollectable accounts.

Department Response: Concur with A and B

Local Government Services Bureau will develop and document a process related to local government entity accounts receivables.

Recommendation #2

We recommend the Department of Administration enhance review procedures to ensure contract payments are complete and accurate and in accordance with contract provisions.

Department Response: Concur

Contract Managers and Accounting Staff are working to create contract invoice summaries for accounting. This will assist with invoice verification and quality control reviews. Staff are also working with contract vendors to further itemize invoices/services.

We look forward to acting on the recommendations and appreciate your consideration of my comments.

Sincerely,

John Lewis, Director

Department of Administration

c: Steve Baiamonte, Administrator, General Services Division Kristen Reynolds, Local Government Bureau Chief, State Financial Services Division

Enclosure: Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

C-3

Department of Administration Corrective Action Plan (CAP): Audit Report #20-13 Financial Compliance Audit for the Two Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020

Target Date	7/1/21
Person responsible for CAP	Kristin Reynolds, Local Government Services Bureau Chief, State Financial Services Division
Management CAP – Corrective Action Plan View	Local Government Services Bureau will develop and document a process related to local government entity accounts receivables.
Management View	A. Concur B. Concur
CFDA # (if previous YES)	N/A
Does this affect a federal program?	
Recommendation #	Me recommend the Department of Administration: A. Comply with state accounting policy for writing off and transferring uncollectable accounts from local governments. B. Implement policies and procedures for determining when receivables are uncollectable and when to write off or transfer uncollectable and when to write off or transfer uncollectable
Agency	61010

Department of Administration Corrective Action Plan (CAP): Audit Report #20-13 Financial Compliance Audit for the Two Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020

Agency Recommendation #	Does this affect	CFDA # (if	Management	Management CAP – Corrective Action Plan	Person	Target
	a rederal program?	previous rest	עומא אומא		responsible for CAP	Uate
Recommendation #2	No	N/A	Concur	Contract Managers and	Steve	12/31/20
				Accounting Staff are working to	Baiamonte,	
We recommend the				create contract invoice	Administrator,	
				summaries for accounting. This	General Services	
Administration enhance				will assist with invoice verification	Division	
review procedures to				and quality control reviews. Staff		
				are also working with contract		
payments are complete				vendors to further itemize		
and accurate and in				invoices/services.		
accordance with contract						